Minutes of a meeting of District Planning Committee held on Thursday, 14th December, 2023 from 2.00 pm

Present: C Phillips (Chairman) D Sweatman (Vice-Chair)

> M Avery R Bates K Berggreen

A Eves R Jackson E Prescott R Whittaker C Wood

Absent: Councillors M Kennedy and A Peacock

1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies were received from Councillors Kennedy and Peacock.

2. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

None.

3. TO BE AGREED BY GENERAL AFFIRMATION THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 10 AUGUST 2023.

The minutes of the meeting of the committee held on 10 August 2023 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

4. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

The Chairman confirmed he had no urgent business.

5. DM/22/2303 - LLOYDS BANK, 31-33 PERRYMOUNT ROAD, HAYWARDS HEATH, WEST SUSSEX, RH16 3SP.

Joanne Fisher, Senior Planning officer, introduced the application which sought full planning permission for a 9 storey extension to the western elevation of 31-33 Perrymount Road, together with a 2 storey rooftop extension, a new rooftop amenity deck, parking, bin and bike stores in addition to internal and external changes to the existing building to deliver a total of 98 dwellings and ancillary residential facilities. Furthermore, a prior approval application has been granted on the application site for change of use of the building from offices to flats. The Senior Planning Officer drew

Members attention to the changes contained in the Agenda Update Sheet, including the re-wording, an additional and removed conditions.

A mix of residential and commercial buildings surround the application site and it lies within the existing built up area boundary of Haywards Heath as designated in the Mid Sussex District Plan and Haywards Heath Neighbourhood Plan. The development adheres to the principles of the Mid Sussex Design Guide which supports the need to increase density in town centre locations through taller development. The Senior Planning officer noted the rooftop extension proposed and the sharp drop from the application site to the station car park. The principle of the development is appropriate to its surroundings and although there would be a loss of a commercial site, the prior approval has already accepted this loss. Policy DP26 of the District Plan supports site optimisation.

The Urban Designer has considered the amended scheme and raised no objections to the proposed extension, noting that although the design exceeds the 6-storey guideline in DG32 of the Design Guide, the adjustment to the floor levels and screening from existing building frontages reduces the impact to the street scene. The site is serviced by good transport links, including walking distance to the railway station, bus stops and town centre. Due to the location of the application site, the reduction in the number of carparking spaces is acceptable.

The Senior Planning officer advised Members that unfortunately the current scheme does not provide any onsite affordable housing, a commuted sum of £663,041 is to be secured for off-site affordable housing, therefore the applicant has complied with DP31 of the District Plan.

Finally, the Senior Planning officer advised the proposal is considered acceptable in sustainability terms as it complies with the relevant criteria policies DP21 and DP39 of the District Plan as well as policy E8 of the Neighbourhood Plan.

Sarah Hufford, Planning Consultant, spoke in support of the application.

The Chaiman reminded the Committee the application was similar to other sites that had been in approved in the area, despite Members concerns regarding the lack of carparking and affordable housing. However, he reminded Members the applicant had agreed to provide a commuted sum of affordable housing offsite.

Members discussed their concerns for the lack of affordable housing on site, while supporting the overall design. The Senior Planning officer advised the application site did not offer the opportunity for on-site affordable housing due to the practicalities, hence the commuted sum agreement. Steve King, Planning Applications Team Leader, emphasised the application had been delayed due to the affordable housing issue being carefully reviewed by the Councils viability consultant and what has been secured in the legal agreement is the best that is achievable. The Chairman reminded Members the affordable housing had been assessed against the current planning policies and would be reassessed again once the application site was at 75% occupation.

Members discussed the reduction in car parking spaces and the requirement for a car club as an alternative. The Senior Planning Officer advised there is a shared car club scheme available on Perrymount Road. The Chaiman noted additional parking would be a benefit, however, the application site was located very close to public transport links and the developer would provide a contribution to encourage residents to use these. The Planning Applications Team Leader, clarified the draft District Plan

was still in consultation stage and this application had to be assessed against the current Neighbourhood Plan and District Plan, in response to a query regarding parking space requirements and the District Plan. The Planning Application Team Leader explained that the draft District Plan would attract more weight as it went through the process of being adopted but the weight to be attached to individual policies in the draft District Plan would depend on the extent of any unresolved objections to those policies.

The Senior Planning officer advised as part of condition 7 of the application, a Noise Impact Assessment would be carried out to mitigate issues including noise nuisance from heat pumps. She also confirmed storage and collection of refuse was provided as part of the application and in terms of the structural safety of balconies, this would be a building control matter.

As there were no further questions, the Chairman took Members to a vote on the recommendations as amended, proposed by Councillor Sweatman and seconded by Councillor Prescott. These were approved with 6 in favour, 3 against and 1 abstention.

RESOLVED

Recommendation A

Planning permission was granted subject to the conditions listed in Appendix A and the completion of a section 106 legal agreement to secure the required infrastructure contributions, the necessary affordable housing contribution and the viability review mechanism as well as travel plan.

Recommendation B

If a satisfactory planning obligation has not been completed by 14th March 2024 it is recommended that the application be refused at the discretion of the Assistant Director for Planning and Sustainable Economy for the following reasons:

1. 'The application fails to comply with policies DP20 and DP31 of the Mid Sussex District Plan and the Mid Sussex Supplementary Planning Documents 'Development Viability', 'Affordable Housing' and 'Development Infrastructure and Contributions' in respect of the infrastructure and affordable housing contributions required to serve the development.'

6. DM/23/1813 - HICKSTEAD LTD, ALL ENGLAND JUMPING COURSE, LONDON ROAD, SAYERS COMMON, HASSOCKS, BN6 9NS.

Susan Dubberley, Senior Planning officer introduced the application which sought full planning permission for three barns to contain 204 permanent loose boxes for competitor's horses, a storage barn for hay and fodder and associated work. She drew Members attention to the Agenda Update Sheet which included an additional condition to the application. The proposal supports policies DP1, DP14, DP19 and DP24 of the District Plan. The proposed design, layout and scale of the development is considered acceptable, it would not cause harm to the character and appearance of the area or cause significant harm to the neighbouring amenities. The design of the barns would be in keeping with the countryside setting and character of the rural location.

Weighing against the application is the less than substantial harm identified in relation to the setting of nearby heritage assets and therefore there is a conflict with policy DP34. However, the positive benefits to the local economy should be afforded significant weight and on balance, these are considered to outweigh the less than substantial heritage harm identified.

Edward Bunn, Executive Director, Hickstead Ltd, spoke in support of the application.

Judith Norris, Planning Consultant, spoke in support of the application.

Councillor Geoff Zeidler, Ward Member, spoke in support of the application.

The Chairman advised he was supportive of the application.

A Member raised concerns regarding the ground works and the need for hard flooring in relation to the associated works. The Senior Planning officer advised this would be covered by condition. A Member noted that although there was a heritage building in close proximity, the vegetation on the boundary would provide adequate screening in all seasons. A Member asked for clarity on the West Sussex Fire and Rescue comments and the harvesting of rainwater. The Senior Planning Officer confirmed that following the receipt of additional information the Fire Service had no objection. Regarding the harvesting of rainwater, this would be used ne elsewhere on the site but could not be used for the stables due to the nature of the facilities. Finally, the Senior Planning Officer confirmed the use of solar panels had been investigated, however, the battery storage requirements and distance from the buildings to use this energy source, would be technically difficult to achieve.

As there were no further questions, the Chairman took Members to a vote on the recommendation, proposed by Councillor Prescott and seconded by Councillor Berggreen. This was approved unanimously.

RESOLVED

Recommendation

Planning permission is approved subject to the conditions set in Appendix A and the Agenda Update Sheet.

7. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.2 DUE NOTICE OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.

None.

The meeting finished at 3.04 pm

Chairman